

EXTRA SESSION
CHAPTER 13—H. F. No. 23
[Coded in Part]

An act relating to the organization and operation of state government; providing for public buildings of the state of Minnesota; authorizing the alteration, repair, rehabilitation of said buildings, the equipping and the replacement of equipment of certain of said buildings; appropriating money therefor.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. **Public buildings; appropriation.** Except as otherwise provided in this act, the sums hereinafter set forth, or so much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby appropriated out of the general revenue fund in the state treasury or such other funds as designated, for the purposes specified in the following sections of this act.

Sec. 2. Subdivision 1. To the commissioner of administration to be expended for the purposes and in accordance with the provisions of this act:

Subd. 2. At Anoka State Hospital:

- (1) Of the sum of \$500,000 appropriated to the commissioner of administration from the 1965 Minnesota state building fund by Laws 1965, Chapter 882, Section 2, Subdivision 2 (2), to construct an addition, remodel and equip cottage 10 as a medical-surgical facility at Anoka State Hospital, the sum of \$194,000 is hereby reappropriated to the commissioner of administration for demolition, cottage 1; remodel and equip basements, cottages 6 and 7; remodel and equip auditorium basement for central library services; construct elevator, cottage 2 or 4; roads, parking and lighting continuance; general repairs
- (2) state's participation with the city of Anoka in the construction of an interceptor sewer . . . \$ 30,000

Subd. 3. At Fergus Falls State Hospital:

- (1) Of the unexpended and unencumbered appropriation made from the 1965 Minnesota state building fund by Laws 1965, Chapter 882, Section 2, Subdivision 3 (1) to the commissioner of administration for ward rehabili-

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

tation including equipment at Fergus Falls State Hospital the sum of \$54,000 is hereby reappropriated to the commissioner of administration for ward and administration remodeling.

Subd. 4. At Hastings State Hospital:

- (1) Repair and replace roof; repair power plant and water pump; repaint water tower; tuck-pointing; improve storm drainage, main building; repair existing roads; demolition

101,934

Subd. 5. At Moose Lake State Hospital:

- (1) Of the sum of \$500,000 appropriated to the commissioner of administration from the 1965 Minnesota state building fund by Laws 1965, Chapter 882, Section 2, Subdivision 2 (2), to construct an addition, remodel and equip cottage 10 as a medical-surgical facility at Anoka State Hospital, the sum of \$79,000 is hereby reappropriated to the commissioner of administration to reroof cottage 8 and corridors; install hospital-wide fire alarm and detection system; resurface parking and service areas; replace thermostats; install thermostat controls, nurses' home

Subd. 6. At Rochester State Hospital:

- (1) Of the sum of \$500,000 appropriated to the commissioner of administration from the 1965 Minnesota state building fund by Laws 1965, Chapter 882, Section 2, Subdivision 2 (2), to construct an addition, remodel and equip cottage 10 as a medical-surgical facility at Anoka State Hospital, the sum of \$19,215 is hereby reappropriated to the commissioner of administration to repair building parapet walls; additional lighting, Medical I and II wards; install utility closets, ward buildings; remodel and refurbish day care hospital; repair hospital service street
- (2) The appropriation of \$100,000 to the commissioner of administration from the 1965 Minnesota state building fund by Laws 1965,

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Chapter 882, Section 2, Subdivision 2 (3), to alter, rehabilitate and equip cottage 1 as a patient rehabilitation center at Anoka State Hospital is reappropriated to the commissioner of administration to construct privacy partitions, ward patient toilets; tuckpoint, caulk, waterproof and repair parapet of community consultation center and administration-clinical building.

Subd. 7. At St. Peter State Hospital:

- (1) Of the sum of \$500,000 appropriated to the commissioner of administration from the 1965 Minnesota state building fund by Laws 1965, Chapter 882, Section 2, Subdivision 2 (2), to construct an addition, remodel and equip cottage 10 as a medical-surgical facility at Anoka State Hospital, the sum of \$75,000 is hereby reappropriated to the commissioner of administration for general repairs including blacktop; install fire stairs, north and south ends of recreation building; demolition, north and south flats, ice house section in maintenance building; center building, old auditorium, and heating plant; relocation of utilities

Subd. 8. At Willmar State Hospital:

- (1) Of the sum of \$500,000 appropriated to the commissioner of administration from the 1965 Minnesota state building fund by Laws 1965, Chapter 882, Section 2, Subdivision 2 (2), to construct an addition, remodel and equip cottage 10 as a medical-surgical facility at Anoka State Hospital, the sum of \$8,000 is hereby reappropriated to the commissioner of administration to surface hospital roadways and parking areas

Subd. 9. At Ah-Gwah-Ching Nursing Home:

- (1) Of the sum of \$500,000 appropriated to the commissioner of administration from the 1965 Minnesota state building fund by Laws 1965, Chapter 882, Section 2, Subdivision 2 (2), to

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

construct an addition, remodel and equip cottage 10 as a medical-surgical facility at Anoka State Hospital, the sum of \$37,000 is hereby reappropriated to the commissioner of administration to tuckpoint brickwork, six buildings; resurface road

Subd. 10. At Glen Lake Sanatorium and Oak Terrace Nursing Home:

- (1) Of the sum of \$500,000 appropriated to the commissioner of administration from the 1965 Minnesota state building fund by Laws 1965, Chapter 882, Section 2, Subdivision 2 (2), to construct an addition, remodel and equip cottage 10 as a medical-surgical facility at Anoka State Hospital, the sum of \$17,500 is hereby reappropriated to the commissioner of administration to replace roof, men's building; install fire exit, east wing; install outdoor hydrants and other recommendations of state fire marshal

Subd. 11. At Minnesota Security Hospital:

- (1) Of the sum of \$500,000 appropriated to the commissioner of administration from the 1965 Minnesota state building fund by Laws 1965, Chapter 882, Section 2, Subdivision 2 (2), to construct an addition, remodel and equip cottage 10 as a medical-surgical facility at Anoka State Hospital, the sum of \$51,500 is hereby reappropriated to the commissioner of administration for general repairs; complete water main loop; tuckpointing

Subd. 12. At Brainerd State Hospital:

- (1) Add tumbler and install ventilation, laundry; install sidewalk; stabilize temporary roadway; install screendoors, various buildings; construct and equip limited recreation areas . . . 44,000

Subd. 13. At Cambridge State Hospital:

- (1) Construct paint storage area; preliminary plans for remodeling and equipping food preparation and employees' dining room areas . 11,000

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 14. At Lake Owasso Children's Home:		
(1)	Tuckpoint and repair, Taylor Building; raze sewage disposal building and landscape; install gas conversion provided county-state lease is extended for five-year period	23,500
Subd. 15. At Faribault State Hospital:		
(1)	<i>Install toilet and water facilities, patients' playground; improve plumbing; repoint and waterproof, hospital building</i>	53,000
Subd. 16. At Owatonna State School:		
(1)	Install standby generator; construct, repair, and light streets and sidewalks; repair cottages and other buildings including basement of Merrill Hall	55,000
Subd. 17. At Minnesota School for the Deaf:		
(1)	Construct storm sewer lines; surface roads, construct curb and gutter, parking area; demolish garage; construct walkway and road to boiler plant, including landscaping	26,000
Subd. 18. At Braille and Sight Saving School:		
(1)	Rewire classrooms, Dow Hall and Industrial Arts Building; reroof and repair dormers, East and West Cottages; relocate transformers; install fire alarm system, Activities Building	18,765
(2)	Campus study, plan addition or relocation of regional library	5,000
Subd. 19. At Gillette State Hospital for Crippled Children:		
(1)	Rewire, install lighting; blacktop driveways, parking areas; install cooling and ventilation, main storage area; revise serving area, employees' cafeteria; construct storage area, brace shop and central supply; correct fire safety deficiencies	75,000
Subd. 20. At the State Reformatory for Men:		
(1)	Reroof Cell House E, Shop Building, Dormitory H, Administration Building; replace	

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

flush valves, Cell Houses A and C; construct two silos, purchase unloading equipment; install acoustical tile, school building ceilings; install metal windows, Administration Building; repoint masonry; replace storm sash, state residence; reactivate ventilation system, school building; install fin tube radiation, Cell House C; install glass blocks, ventilators and controls, south dining hall; improve slaughterhouse; road work; increase height truck gate; convert dining hall into day room, add stairway to second floor, E House; demolition, existing food service building and power plant

161,760

Subd. 21. At Minnesota State Prison:

- (1) Tuckpointing; renovate inmate main dining room; install heating motors and controls, machinery and cordage factory; construct sally port, North Gate; repair and brick up windows, foundry; install steam and return lines, seven towers, and water line to Tower 7; install concrete floors, Shops K, N, Q; install storm sewers Tower 3 to main sewer, south end Shop R to North Gate, outside east warehouse; construct sanitary sewers from creamery to outside warehouse, tie in farmer and dairyman's houses; construct septic tank, home farm heifer barns 1 and 2; construct loading docks, machinery and cordage factories; repair roofs; construct greenhouse; construct concrete slab, home farm dairy; fence farm

173,600

Subd. 22. At State Reformatory for Women:

- (1) Replace roof, Administration Building, Higbee Cottage; paint trim, replace storm windows, screens and make necessary repairs; install steps and stoop, Shaw Cottage; complete modernization and repair of kitchens and bathrooms in all buildings; remodel basement, Shaw Cottage

39,500

Subd. 23. At State Training School for Boys:

- (1) Remodel Duke Cottage including fencing . .

45,000

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 24.	At Minnesota Home School:	
(1)	Remodel and furnish infirmary building; install water softeners; repair school building and greenhouse; demolish or sell the Inn; demolish Van Cleve Cottage	47,000
Subd. 25.	At Thistledeew Youth Forestry Camp:	
(1)	Construct workshop addition to garage; install secondary distribution system and area lighting; install central gas distribution system; install sewer improvements.	38,500
Subd. 26.	At Willow River Youth Forestry Camp:	
(1)	Relocate power lines and area lighting; construct outside volleyball and basketball court	6,500
Subd. 27.	At St. Croix Youth Forestry Camp:	
(1)	Install fire detection system	1,000
Subd. 28.	At Bemidji State College:	
(1)	Preventive maintenance	49,000
Subd. 29.	At Mankato State College:	
(1)	Install water system; continue installation of electrical distribution system	50,000
(2)	Preventive maintenance	122,000
Subd. 30.	At Moorhead State College:	
(1)	Install storm sewer, parking facilities, sidewalks, campus lighting, sprinkler system and landscape	50,000
(2)	Preventive maintenance	55,000
(3)	The unexpended and unencumbered balances of the appropriations made to the commissioner of administration in Extra Session Laws 1961, Chapter 72, Section 2, Subdivision 26 (1) from the 1961 Minnesota state building fund, for remodeling and rehabilitation of MacLean Hall Complex at Moorhead State College and in Laws 1965, Chapter 839, Section 5, Subdivision 4 (2), from the 1963 Minnesota state building fund to remodel and rehabilitate and equip Weld Hall at Moorhead State College	

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

are reappropriated to the commissioner of administration to remodel, rehabilitate, and equip Weld Hall and MacLean Hall Complex for classrooms. Preliminary plans of the remodeling and rehabilitation projects shall be submitted to the legislative building commission for review.

Subd. 31. At St. Cloud College:

- | | | |
|-----|---|--------|
| (1) | Continue installation of electrical distribution system | 35,000 |
| (2) | <i>Preventive maintenance</i> | 77,000 |

Subd. 32. At Southwest State College:

- | | | |
|-----|----------------------------------|--------|
| (1) | Preventive maintenance | 24,000 |
|-----|----------------------------------|--------|

Subd. 33. At Winona State College:

- | | | |
|-----|---|--------|
| (1) | Install campus lighting, remodeling | 43,000 |
| (2) | Preventive maintenance | 48,000 |

Subd. 34. At the capitol group of buildings:

- | | | |
|-----|--|---------|
| (1) | Capitol maintenance, including installing promenade decking, reroof, and replace drains in west wing; continue exterior lighting repair and improvement; repair centennial building | 141,500 |
| (2) | Convert light wells to office space, Historical Building | 36,000 |
| (3) | Ceremonial building maintenance including installation of central climate control; surface, light and fence parking lot, install automatic vehicle gauge; light exterior grounds; replace floors in three basement rooms; miscellaneous electrical repairs; caulk, tuckpoint and steam clean terricotta; install deck covering over three porches; install dumbwaiter; install intercom system; remodel, decorate and furnish apartment over carriage house; widen garage door, install automatic door opener; furniture and furnishings | 235,000 |

Notwithstanding the provisions of Minnesota Statutes 1965, Chapter 16 to the contrary the commissioner of ad-

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

ministration may enter into a contract for interior decoration, including acquisition of furniture and furnishings, without taking competitive bids.

- (4) Preventive maintenance 150,000
- (5) Reimburse city of St. Paul for assessment in connection with public works which benefit state property 2,764.81
- (6) The following items as set forth in the report of the legislative building commission to the 1967 legislature are referred to the capitol area architectural and planning commission for consideration within the comprehensive use plan: (a) Office building and mall parking ramp, (b) supreme court requirements, and (c) historical building expansion.

Subd. 35. At the Minnesota Residential Treatment Center:

- (1) Construct incinerator; construct change and shower room, main kitchen; widen driveways; construct garage; modify security office; modify cold room areas; construct perimeter road; construct overhang, Youthful Offenders building 81,500

Subd. 36. At the Minnesota Veterans Home:

- (1) Complete remodeling buildings 1 and 5; complete renovation of kitchen in main dining hall; repair bridge; reroof hospital and south half of main dining hall; replace south sun-deck; repair retaining wall and develop bank areas; waterproof hospital foundation wall, auditorium east wall and check drain tile 165,000
- (2) Connect to the Minneapolis water system; including new water main and demolition of existing water tower. This item is supplementary and in addition to the appropriation made for this purpose in Laws 1965, Chapter 829, Section 5, Subdivision 3 (2) 25,000
- (3) The appropriation of \$25,000 to the commissioner of administration from the 1961 Minnesota state building fund by Extra Session Laws 1961, Chapter 72, Section 2, Subdivi-

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

sion 23 (2) for demolishing building no. 8 upon completion of dual purpose domiciliary at Minnesota Soldiers Home is reappropriated to the commissioner of administration for demolishing building no. 8 at Minnesota Veterans Home.

Sec. 3. Subdivision 1. To the commissioner of public welfare to be expended for the purpose of repairs and replacements:

Subd. 2.	At Anoka State Hospital	67,600
Subd. 3.	At Fergus Falls State Hospital	96,800
Subd. 4.	At Hastings State Hospital	50,000
Subd. 5.	At Moose Lake State Hospital	66,800
Subd. 6.	At Rochester State Hospital	87,470
Subd. 7.	At St. Peter State Hospital	106,000
Subd. 8.	At Willmar State Hospital	76,000
Subd. 9.	At Faribault State Hospital	143,500
Subd. 10.	At Cambridge State Hospital	103,400
Subd. 11.	At Owatonna State School	31,300
Subd. 12.	At Shakopee Home for Children	1,500
Subd. 13.	At Brainerd State Hospital	72,100
Subd. 14.	At Braille and Sight Saving School	16,200
Subd. 15.	At School for the Deaf	35,400
Subd. 16.	At Gillette State Hospital for Crippled Children	22,000
Subd. 17.	At Ah-Gwah-Ching Nursing Home	31,400
Subd. 18.	At Glen Lake State Sanatorium and Oak Terrace Nursing Home	49,900

Sec. 4. Subdivision 1. To the commissioner of corrections for the purpose of repairs and replacements:

Subd. 2.	At Minnesota State Prison	86,250
Subd. 3.	At Reformatory for Men	84,800

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 4.	At Reformatory for Women	7,000
Subd. 5.	At Training School for Boys	30,000
Subd. 6.	At Home School	16,180
Subd. 7.	At Residential Treatment Center	30,000
Sec. 5.	Subdivision 1. To the state college board for repairs and betterments at the state colleges	160,000
Sec. 6.	Subdivision 1. To the junior college board for repairs and betterments at the state junior colleges	70,000
Sec. 7.	To the Minnesota Historical Society:	
(1)	General repairs to buildings at Oliver H. Kelley Farm	2,400
(2)	Reroof and recap Sam Brown House	400
(3)	Reconstruct carriage house at Alexander Ramsey Home from original plans on original land	21,000
Sec. 8.	Subdivision 1. The sum of 12,500 is appropriated to the department of civil defense for the following study to be conducted during the biennium ending June 30, 1969: A professional engineering study to determine the best locations in state owned facilities for emergency operating centers for seven area commands and the Minnesota control center. In determining the best locations in which to conduct emergency operations of state government and to coordinate assistance to county and local governments, the following considerations shall be observed: Area to be served; degree of protection afforded from blast, radiation, and fallout; availability of emergency power, communications, and utilities; space necessary to perform emergency operations; cost of modifying existing or proposed state facilities; and cost of equipping and supplying the centers.	
Subd. 2.	A copy of the report of the study shall be submitted to the legislative building commission on or before August 1, 1968.	
Sec. 9.	The commissioner of administration is authorized to construct a storage building for the license plate plant at the state reformatory for men, the appropriation for which is contained in another act.	
Sec. 10.	Notwithstanding any provision of Minnesota Statutes, Section 16.17, all the moneys appropriated in section 2 shall	

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

be deemed for construction, repairs or other building improvements and shall be available until the purposes for which the appropriation was made shall have been accomplished or abandoned. The moneys appropriated by sections 3, 4, 5, and 6 not expended or encumbered shall cancel on June 30, 1969.

Sec. 11. If moneys are appropriated during the same or different sessions of the legislature for the same or related projects, which appropriations do not lapse until the purposes for which the appropriations were made shall have been accomplished or abandoned, the state auditor shall, upon the certification of the commissioner of administration as to the accounts involved, make such transfers of appropriations as will place in one account all of the moneys appropriated for the same or related projects.

Sec. 12. In the case of appropriations made for construction or other permanent improvement, including acquisition of real estate, equipment, repair, rehabilitation, appurtenances or utility systems, which appropriations do not lapse until the purposes for which the appropriations were made shall have been accomplished or abandoned, the commissioner of administration may dispense with periodic allotment and shall prescribe such regulations as will insure proper application and encumbrance of funds.

Sec. 13. **[15.50] Capitol area architectural and planning commission.** Subdivision 1. (a) A capitol area architectural and planning commission, herein referred to as the commission, consisting of seven members is hereby created. The governor shall be a member of the commission. Three members shall be appointed by the governor, at least two of whom shall not be residents of Ramsey county, by and with the advice and consent of the senate; three members shall be appointed by the mayor of the city of Saint Paul, with the advice and consent of the city council.

(b) The term of all appointed members of the commission is four years, except that one of the members first appointed by the governor and one of the members first appointed by the mayor shall be appointed for terms of two years. Thereafter the terms of such appointees shall be for four years. Vacancies in any office shall be filled by the appointing authority and for the unexpired term. The term of the first members of the commission shall commence on July 1, 1967.

(c) The governor is the chairman of the commission. The attorney general is the legal advisor to the commission. The commission may elect a vice chairman who may preside at meetings in the

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by strikeout.

absence of the governor and such other officers as it may deem necessary to carry out its duties.

(d) The state planning director or his designee shall act as the executive secretary of the commission. It may employ such other officers and employees as it may deem necessary all of whom shall be in the classified service of the state civil service. The commission may contract for professional and other similar service on such terms as it may deem desirable.

(e) The members of the commission shall serve without compensation, but each shall be reimbursed for his expenses incurred in the performance of his duties.

Subd. 2. (a) The commission shall prepare, prescribe, and from time to time amend a comprehensive use plan for the capitol area, herein called the area, which shall initially consist of that portion of the city of Saint Paul comprehended within the following boundaries: Beginning at the point of intersection of Rice Street and Edmund Avenue, thence southerly along Rice Street to the north line of the right-of-way of Interstate Highway 94, thence easterly along the said north line to the center line of Jackson Street, thence northwesterly along Jackson Street to Edmund Avenue extended, thence westerly along Edmund Avenue extended and Edmund Avenue to the point of origin.

(b) The commissioner of administration shall conduct and report to the commission from time to time surveys and projections of the present and anticipated needs of the state for additional buildings, parking and other transportation facilities in the area, together with such other plans and materials as he may deem desirable or which the commission may request.

(c) No public building, street, parking lot, or monument, or other construction shall be built or altered on any public lands within the area unless the plans for the same conforms to the comprehensive use plan as specified in clause (d) and to the requirement for competitive plans as specified in clause (e). No alteration substantially changing the external appearance of any existing public building approved in the comprehensive plan or of any new public building the plans for which were secured by competition under clause (e), may be made without the prior consent of the commission. The commissioner of administration shall consult with the commission regarding internal changes having the effect of substantially altering the architecture of the interior of any proposed building.

(d) The comprehensive plan shall show the location of each

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

building, landscape feature, open space, monument, or other condition of lands or buildings within the area, whether existing or projected, and no alteration or improvement shall be made to public lands in the area save in accordance with the plan or an amendment thereto.

(e) The commission shall secure by competitions, plans for any new public building. Plans for any comprehensive plan, landscaping scheme, or street plan which may be proposed, or for any proposed alteration of any existing building, landscaping scheme or street plan may be secured by a similar competition. Such competition shall be conducted under rules prescribed by the commission and may be of any type which meets the competition standards of the American Institute of Architects. Designs selected shall become the property of the state of Minnesota and the commission may award one or more premiums in each such competition and may pay such costs and fees as may be required for the conduct thereof. *At the option of the commission, plans for projects estimated to cost less than \$500,000 may be approved without competition provided such plans have been considered by the architectural committee described in clause (f).* Plans for projects estimated to cost and costing less than \$200,000 and for construction of streets need not be considered by the architectural committee if in conformity with the comprehensive plan.

(f) The commission shall not adopt any plan under clause (e) hereof unless it shall first receive the comments and criticism of a committee of three architects who have been selected and appointed as follows: one by the State Arts Council, one by the commission, and one by the Minnesota Society of the American Institute of Architects. Members of such committee shall not be contestants under clause (e) hereof. Such comments and criticism shall be a matter of public information.

(g) The comprehensive plan for the area shall be developed and maintained in close cooperation with the planning department and the council for the city of Saint Paul and the State Arts Council, and no such plan or amendment thereof shall be effective without 90 days' notice to the planning department of the city of Saint Paul and the State Arts Council.

(h) The state may acquire by gift, purchase or eminent domain proceedings any lands situated in the area described in this section, if it finds that they are needed for future expansion or beautification of the area, if specifically authorized by law so to do, and funds are appropriated for such purpose.

(i) The commission is the successor of the state veterans'

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

service building commission, and as such may adopt regulations and may reenact the regulations adopted by its predecessor under Laws 1945, Chapter 315, and acts amendatory thereof. The commission created by Laws 1945, Chapter 315, is abolished.

(j) The commission shall meet at the call of the chairman and at such other times as it may prescribe.

(k) The members of the legislative building commission shall constitute an advisory commission to the capitol area architectural and planning commission. This architectural and planning commission may consult and confer with the advisory commission, but the advisory commission's recommendation shall be advisory only. The members of the advisory commission shall serve without compensation, but shall be reimbursed for their expenses when called upon to meet.

Subd. 3. The administrative and planning expenses of the commission shall be borne equally by the state and by the city of Saint Paul, and in order to meet such expense the city may expend moneys currently in the city of Saint Paul Capitol Approach Improvement Fund established by Laws 1945, Chapter 315, and acts amendatory thereof, and may hold the moneys in said fund until expended in accordance herewith and when such funds have been expended such expense shall be borne by the state. The expenses of the commission for competition premiums, land acquisition or improvement or any other capital expenditures in or upon properties owned or to be owned by the state shall be borne by the state. The expenses of any other public body for such expenditures shall be borne by the body concerned.

Subd. 4. There is appropriated to the commission from the general revenue fund in the state treasury the following sums of money:

(1) for competition premium purposes, \$20,000;

(2) for administrative and planning expenses, \$125,000, to be expended only if a similar sum of money is made available to the commission by the city of Saint Paul.

None of the moneys appropriated by this subdivision shall cancel, but shall be available to the commission until expended and for the purposes indicated.

Subd. 5. The moneys appropriated to the commission are subject to the requirements of budget and allotment as prescribed by Minnesota Statutes 1965, Chapter 16. Except for budgeting and al-

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

lotting the commission shall be subject to none of the other provisions of said chapter 16.

Subd. 6. Laws 1945, Chapter 315, as amended is superseded by this section to the extent that the provisions thereof are inconsistent herewith, otherwise said law shall remain in full force and effect.

Sec. 14. This act is effective July 1, 1967.

Approved May 31, 1967.

EXTRA SESSION
CHAPTER 14—H. F. No. 36

[Coded]

An act requiring all pupils, teachers and visitors to wear eye protective devices while participating in or directly observing certain industrial education, physics, and chemistry laboratory activities; and to authorize and provide for the purchase of such devices.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. **[126.20] Education; eye protective devices.**
Subdivision 1. Every person shall wear industrial quality eye protective devices when participating in, observing or performing any function in connection with, any courses or activities taking place in eye protection areas, as defined in subdivision 3, of any school, college, university or other educational institution in the state.

Subd. 2. Any student failing to comply with such requirements may be temporarily suspended from participation in said course and the registration of a student for such course may be cancelled for willful, flagrant, or repeated failure to observe the above requirements.

Subd. 3. Eye protection areas shall include, but not be limited to, vocational or industrial art shops, science or other school laboratories, or school or institutional facilities in which activities are taking place and materials are being used involving:

- (a) Hot molten metals;
- (b) Milling, sawing, turning, shaping, cutting, grinding or stamping of any solid materials;

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by strikeout.